
WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

APRIL 13, 2010 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Leo Beecher, Chairman       Brent Page 

Jennifer Bassarear        Curtis Poole 

Anne Blankenship        Gary Sharp 

          Matt Terry 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Tim Stephens, Community Development Director 

Bonnie Craig, Secretary 

Kent Parry, Mayor 

 

VISITORS: 

LeGrande Blackley   Pat Blackley   Hall Blankenship 

Wayne Chambers   Deb East   Loren East 

Don Schrader    Lois Schrader   John Larson 

Annoni Larson   Scott Corbridge 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:      Leo Beecher 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The Commission reviewed the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held March 23, 

2010.  After their review, Commissioner Page made a motion to approve the minutes as 

corrected with Council Member Bassarear seconding the motion and the motion carried. 

CITY COUNCIL REPORT 

 

Mayor Kent Parry was at tonight’s meeting.  He reported on the City Council meeting held April 

6, 2010.  Please see the minutes of that meeting for the details of his report. 

 

OPENS SESSION 

 

Chairman Beecher then opened the meeting to comments from the public that were not on the 

agenda. 

 

There were no public comments and Chairman Beecher closed the open session. 

 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION 

APRIL 13, 2010 

PAGE 2 

 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST—URBAN CHICKENS—715 WEST 1400 SOUTH—

JOHN LARSON 

 

Mr. Tim Stephens, the Community Development Director, reviewed this item with the 

Commission.  He noted that the Larson’s were proposing to keep 4 chickens at their home 

located in a residential zone.  The applicant’s are planning on constructing a small chicken coop 

in their rear yard. 

 

Mr. John Larson appeared before the Commission.  The Commission asked Mr. Larson if he had 

reviewed the regulations concerning the keeping of urban chickens and if he had any questions 

or concerns regarding those regulations.   

 

Mr. Larson said he had seen the regulations and had no questions or concerns with them. 

 

There were no further questions from the Commission and Commissioner Sharp made a motion 

to approve the conditional use request for John Larson for the keeping of urban chickens.  

Commissioner Blankenship seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST—SKY SATELLITE—2272 SOUTH 1560 WEST—

WAYNE CHAMBERS 

 

Mr. Stephens then reviewed this item with the Commission.  He said that Mr. Wayne Chambers 

is proposing to operate a satellite TV systems sale and installation service from an existing 

building within the Skypark Industrial Park.  There will be several employees including their 

service vehicles that will be operating from this location.   

 

Mr. Wayne Chambers then appeared before the Commission.  The Commission asked Mr. 

Chambers if he had any questions on the guidelines concerning this proposed business site.  

 

Mr. Chambers said he had no questions or concerns regarding those guidelines 

 

The Commission asked if the service vehicles would be parked overnight at the proposed 

business site.  Mr. Chambers said they would not be parked overnight that they would come and 

go each day. 

 

The Commission asked how the business would be advertised.  Mr. Chambers said he was 

planning on using radio ads, outbound sales calls and internet advertising.   

 

The Commission asked how many employees Mr. Chambers had and he replied he had 12 

employees. 

 

There were no further questions by the Commission and Commissioner Poole made a motion to 

approve the conditional use request for Sky Satellite and Mr. Wayne Chambers with the 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION 

APRIL 13, 2010 

PAGE 3 

 

condition that at no time may any materials, equipment or similar items be stored outside the 

enclosed building.  Commissioner Bassarear seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST—ROCKIN E COUNTRY STORE SIGN—1201 WEST 

500 SOUTH—LOREN EAST 

 

Mr. Stephens reviewed this item with the Commission.  He noted the owners of the Rockin E 

General Store have proposed to replace their existing sign with a free standing or pole sign which 

incorporates an LED or electronic message center.  In the past, these electronic signs that involve 

animation or changing messages have been a conditional use.  There have been a few of these 

signs approved in the City.  There have been several lighting issues with one of these signs 

belonging to Murdock Chevrolet, as it had negatively impacted an adjacent neighborhood.  The 

proposed Rockin E store electronic sign incorporates the same kind of technology as the 

Murdock electronic sign which negatively impacted the adjacent neighborhood.  The Rockin E 

store is also located quite close to the Westwood Mobile Home Park and similar restrictions 

should be considered for the Rockin E store sign as were outlined for the Murdock Chevrolet 

sign. 

 

The Commission asked Mr. Stephens how big the proposed sign was going to be.  Mr. Stephens 

said the panel itself would be about 5 feet high by 7 feet across being placed on a 20 foot pole. 

 

Chairman Beecher said he had concerns over the brightness of that sort of sign for not only the 

residences that are located close by but for the drivers that would be using 500 South. 

 

The Commission then had a discussion on the time of day the sign would be operated and the 

brightness of the sign at certain points in the day.  They discussed  the lighting of the sign should 

be decreased from dark to dusk, or from times of the day the store would not be open as to 

mitigate the impact of the lighting to neighbors and drivers. 

 

Mr. Loren East appeared before the Commission.  Chairman Beecher said that since Mr. East 

had heard the discussion by the Commission he wanted Mr. East to outline what his plans were 

in operating the sign.  Mr. East said the store opened at 8:00 A.M. and closed at 7:00 P.M.  He 

said he had no problem with decreasing the lighting of the sign after the store closed at 7:00 P.M.  

He said the sign still had to run after that time but that the lighting would decrease to 10% of full 

operation after the store closed and would flash the temperature or the time.  He said he did not 

plan on starting the sign back up to full capacity until the store opened at 8:00 A.M.  He said he 

did not plan on operating the sign at full capacity after the store closed at 7:00 P.M. 

 

The Commission asked how the sign would be set up to run.  Mr. East said it would be operated 

by computer and it could be set to start up and shut down from full capacity by setting it to 

specific times by the computer. 

 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION 

APRIL 13, 2010 

PAGE 4 

 

The Commission had no further questions for Mr. East and Commissioner Sharp made a motion 

to approve the conditional use for the Rockin E Country Store Sign and Mr. Loren East with the 

following conditions: 

 

1. The sign should not negatively impact the adjacent area particularly the residential 

neighborhood just across the street and south of the proposed sign location as well as 

traffic on 500 South. 

2. Sign graphic animation shall be reduced between the hours of 9:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M. 

3. Screen and image changes shall be slowed to 30 second intervals between 9:00 P.M. and 

7:00 A.M. 

4. All harsh changes in contrast from dark to light background shall cease between 9:00 

P.M. and 7:00 A.M. 

5. The sign would be permitted to have subtle changes, such as fading or scrolling between 

9:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M. but in no case shall blinking or flashing images be permitted. 

6. Sign brightness shall be dimmed and regulated to mitigate impact to adjacent residential 

areas and traffic on 500 South. 

 

Commissioner Terry seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

 

CONDITIONAL USE INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER—786 SOUTH 950 

WEST—SCOTT CORBRIDGE 

 

Mr. Stephens reviewed the details of this item with the Commission.  He explained that Mr. 

Scott Corbridge is proposing to operate a second business from the Interstate Battery building 

and site.  Mr. Corbridge is proposing to operate a battery business that would be mostly retail, 

selling smaller battery packs, watch battery replacements and similar battery items.  This use is 

similar and compatible with the previously approved battery business with a more retail 

component. 

 

The Commission discussed with Mr. Stephens parking availability since there had been a new 

large addition added to this site and asked if there would be enough parking. 

 

Mr. Scott Corbridge appeared before the Commission.  He said that the majority of the  parking 

for the employees of the business was on the west side of the building clearing the parking on the 

east side of the building for the customers.  It was noted that there would probably only be 2 or 3 

customers visiting the business at a time. 

 

The Commission asked Mr. Corbridge what kinds of batteries he would be selling.  He said he 

would be selling batteries as small as watch batteries and would be selling both batteries in bulk 

and individually.  He said he would like to sell as much retail inventory as possible to build up 

the new business.   

 

The Commission asked how the public would be aware of the new aspect of the business.  Mr. 

Corbridge said he was planning on doing a lot of advertising by mailings, being a TV sponsor 



OFFICIAL MINUTES 

WOODS CROSS PLANNING COMMISSION 

APRIL 13, 2010 

PAGE 5 

 

and by any other advertising means to get the word out of the new side to the already existing 

business. 

 

The Commission asked if there would be new advertising on the building.  Mr. Corbridge said he 

was not planning on doing that right now but had plans to do so in the future. 

 

There were no further questions from the Planning Commission and Commissioner Blankenship 

made a motion to approve the conditional use permit for Interstate All Battery Center and Mr. 

Scott Corbridge.  Commissioner Poole seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

 

GENERAL AND PENDING 

 

Mr. Stephens noted there would be another animated type sign for a retail store in the area that 

would be coming before the Commission for review at the next Planning Commission meeting. 

 

He also noted the City Council is putting together a CDA for the 500 South and Redwood Road 

area.  The City Council is hoping to work with West Bountiful City to see if they can work out a 

joint CDA to make the area as pleasing as possible. 

 

Commissioner Sharp noted he may not be in attendance at the next meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business before the Commission, Commissioner Terry made a motion to 

adjourn the meeting at 7:10 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________     __________________________________ 

 

 Leo Beecher, Chairman    Bonnie S. Craig, Secretary 

 

   

 

  

 

 

   


